

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Ethical business is good business. Integrity is central to our identity.



Griffon Corporation is committed to maintaining the highest standards of conduct. Ethical behavior is morally right and legally required, and requires your personal commitment, the same kind of commitment that we believe you and your fellow employees expect for themselves and the Company from others.

The good name and reputation of Griffon and its businesses are fundamental to our continued success. Each one of us has a personal responsibility to ensure that this reputation remains unblemished by conducting our business in an honest and ethical manner in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.

The *Code of Business Conduct and Ethics* cannot address every situation our personnel may encounter, nor is it a strict list of do's and don'ts. Rather, it is a basis for you to make sound moral and ethical judgments in business dealings. Other Company policies, practices and procedures, as well as sound common sense, also apply.

Attendance at periodic training on matters related to the *Code* will be required, and may be accomplished through live sessions or through an electronic, online portal. At the conclusion of these sessions, you will be required to certify in writing or electronically that you have reviewed the *Code* and that you have attended the training session. A copy of these certifications will be retained by human resources.

As a company, we are committed to the *Code*, and we require our personnel to adhere to it. Accordingly, we urge you to report suspected violations of the *Code* to your Ethics Liaison Officer, your supervisor or any of the officers responsible for your division. If you wish to report suspected violations anonymously, or if you feel that reports of suspected violations have been ineffective, we urge you to use the Ethics Compliance Line reporting process.

If at any time you have questions about the *Code*, contact your supervisor, your local Human Resources representative, your Ethics Liaison Officer, or Griffon's Ethics Officer.

Remember, ethical behavior is good businesses.

Table of Contents



How to Use This Information	4
Ethical Decision Making Process	5
Ethics Policy and Principles	6
Respect and Concern for Others	8
Conflicts of Interest	9
Corporate Opportunities	10
Insider Trading	11
Gratuities and Business Courtesies	12
Company Books, Records and Reports	14
Responding to Investigations and Legal Action	15
Using Company Resources	16
Product Integrity	17
Employee Health and Safety and the Environment	18
Confidentiality/Protecting Information	20
Export, Import and Antiboycott Compliance	22
Antitrust and Competition	23
Doing Business with the Government	24
Recruiting Government Employees	25
Procurement Integrity	26
Lobbying Expenditures	27
Problem Reporting and Resolution	28
Enforcement	29
Enforcement	30
Amendments and Waivers	31
Where to Go for Help	32

How to Use This Information

Griffon's *Code of Business Conduct and Ethics* is the cornerstone of our Ethics Program and applies to all employees, officers and directors of the Company (referred to in the *Code* as "personnel"). This document provides you with a general overview of our policies and procedures as well as guidelines of conduct in various scenarios. It is not intended as a definitive description of every corporate policy that may apply to you.

For a detailed explanation of the additional policies and procedures that govern your actions in the workplace, talk with your supervisor and/or Human Resources, or your Ethics Liaison Officer.

Operating Globally

Because we do business all around the world, on occasion our personnel will find themselves subject to multinational laws and regulations they may not be familiar with. It is our expectation that every employee, officer and director knows, follows and respects the laws of the land in which they work. In cases where these laws and cultural customs differ from the *Code*, it is our expectation that our personnel will follow whichever requires the highest standard of ethical conduct. In other words, behavior following local "norms" may not be followed if they conflict with the *Code*; and if local rules are stricter than those permitted by Griffon in other jurisdictions, the stricter local rules must be complied with.

Ethical Decision Making Process



It is not always easy to determine the right thing to do in a particular work situation. Sometimes because of the complexity of the situation, the decision is not clear cut. Sometimes you may face situations in which the path you are considering, although not a violation of the law or policy, does not seem to be the "right thing to do." In such cases, it is important to consider the matter in the context of our ethical philosophy and principles. To assist you, the decision making process provides a consistent approach to the evaluation of an ethical dilemma.

A good ethical decision-making process includes the following elements:

Review the situation and how you feel about it

- → Is it legal?
- ◆ Is it ethical?
- ◆ Do I believe that it makes the Company or me "walk too close to the line?"
- Is it consistent with Company beliefs, policies and operating procedures?
- Does it accurately project the corporate image?
- → How comfortable would I be explaining my actions in front of national television news cameras?
- ◆ How comfortable would I be if my decision were published in the newspaper?
- Would I do the same thing if a loved one, boss or friend were watching?

Use your resources

- + What policies should I consult with for additional information, assistance or advice?
- Who should I consult with if I have further questions or concerns?

If at any time you have a concern about a particular set of circumstances or a particular situation, you should speak to your supervisor, your local Human Resources representative, your Ethics Liaison Officer or the Griffon Ethics Officer – or you can call the Griffon Ethics Compliance Line.

Ethics Policy and Principles



Ethics Policy

It is Griffon's policy to conduct its business honestly, ethically and in accordance with all applicable laws. We expect all personnel to conduct themselves with the highest standards of business conduct.

Ethics Principles

Doing what's right is the guiding principle of Griffon. This includes:

- → Honest and ethical conduct at all times
- + Promotion of honest and ethical conduct among peers and subordinates
- Full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable disclosure in all public communications, including all reports and documents filed with or submitted to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
- + 100% compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations, both in letter and spirit
- → Fair dealing with our customers, suppliers, competitors and employees, including properly maintaining the confidentiality of sensitive information about us or belonging to others
- Not taking unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information, misrepresentation of facts or any other unfair dealing practice
- ◆ Protection and proper use of Company assets (i.e., efficiently and for legitimate business purposes)
- The prompt internal reporting of violations of this policy to appropriate personnel
- Accountability for adherence to these standards
- ◆ Acting in good faith, responsibly, and with due care, competence and diligence

Why is this important?

. We want to be an honest and ethical company that people trust and want to do business with. To demonstrate anything less than complete honesty, integrity and fairness to our customers, suppliers, shareholders and each other can undermine what we are all working so hard to build.

Your Role

The decisions you make on a daily basis not only affect the Company's bottom line, they also affect our reputation. That's why we expect you to do the right thing, for the right reason, in the right way, every time. And while it's the personal responsibility of each of us to strive to

succeed in all our business endeavors, this success must never come at the expense of our ethical standards.

You also have an important duty to protect the Company and act in the Company's best interests. This means that, among other things, you should not use Company assets, confidential information or your position within the Company for any reason other than to benefit the Company.

To that end, it is the personal responsibility of each of us to ensure that the Company's business is conducted in absolute compliance with applicable laws and Company policies. Should any questions or possible violations be observed, it is the responsibility of all personnel to share their concern with appropriate Company management.

Respect and Concern for Others



Policy

It is Griffon's policy to provide a work environment that affords all employees the opportunity to contribute to the best of their abilities. For this reason, Griffon will not tolerate discrimination, harassment/sexual harassment, or physical or verbal threats. The Company's policy on equal employment opportunity prohibits discriminating against anyone based on the person's race, color, religion, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, physical or mental disability, service in the uniformed services, or any characteristic protected by law.

Why is this important?

Preventing harassment, discrimination and threats is a matter of respecting each other's rights and dignity, which is a basic value at Griffon.

Griffon's employees and business associates are entitled to conduct their business in a work environment free of these distractions and to work in an environment that is not "hostile." To help ensure such an environment, we must all take any discrimination, harassment or threat seriously and promptly advise management.

Your Role

As an employee, officer or director, you are responsible for your actions while conducting Company business and are expected to treat co-workers, vendors, clients, customers and contractors with respect. Personnel who do not uphold such conduct will be subject to disciplinary action, which may include termination of employment with Griffon. Working together to support these standards of conduct will create an environment of respect and concern for others.

Conflicts of Interest



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that all personnel must act with honesty and integrity and avoid any conflict, or even the appearance of a conflict, between their personal interest and the interest of the Company, unless it has been specifically described to and approved by the Company. A conflict of interest may exist when a person's private interest interferes in any way with the interests of the Company. A conflict situation can arise when one of our personnel takes actions or has interests that may make it difficult to perform his or her Company work objectively and effectively. Conflicts of interest also arise when one of our personnel, or a member of his or her family, receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her position in the Company or through the use of confidential Company information. Unless disclosed and approved, neither our personnel, nor their immediate family members, may be involved with any business that competes or does business with Griffon.

Why is this important?

Griffon has an obligation to its customers, vendors and shareholders to ensure that business decisions are based on quality, price, delivery, service, experience and reputation. Further, business decisions must not be influenced by personal considerations or interests.

Your Role

Seek guidance when you or a family member are involved in an activity, or have a personal interest, which could affect your objectivity in performing your duties and responsibilities at Griffon. Keep in mind that an actual conflict of interest does not need to be present to constitute a violation of this policy. Activities that create the appearance of a conflict of interest must be fully disclosed before actions are taken that could impact the reputation of Griffon or our personnel. Seek advice from Human Resources or the Ethics Liaison Officer for further guidance on how to make a disclosure.

Corporate Opportunities



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that employees, officers and directors will not take for personal use, or for use by their immediate family member, any business opportunity learned of as a result of such individual's position with the Company. For example, no employee, officer or director should acquire any direct or indirect interest in any entity or venture when he or she knows that the Company may take or is taking steps to acquire any interest in such entity or venture.

Why is this important?

Our personnel and their immediate family members are not to use Company property, information or position for personal gain. Employees, officers and directors owe a duty to the Company to advance its legitimate interests – and not their own – when the opportunity to do so arises.

Your Role

If you learn of a business opportunity that is within the Company's existing or proposed lines of business, you should inform your supervisor or the Ethics Liaison Officer of the business opportunity and refrain from personally pursuing the matter until such time as the Company decides to forego the business opportunity. You should also disclose to your supervisor or the Ethics Liaison Officer if you or a family member has an ownership interest in an entity with whom the Company is doing – or is about to do – business.

Insider Trading



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that personnel must not benefit from, or enable others to benefit from, trading in securities/stocks based on material information not available to the general public.

Why is this important?

First and foremost, insider trading is illegal and the consequences of insider trading can be severe, including loss of employment, substantial fines and/or imprisonment. It is also a violation of Griffon's policy to trade Griffon stock while in possession of material nonpublic information.

Information may be considered material if:

- → It is likely to affect the market price of securities/stocks or if a reasonable investor would want to know such information before making an investment decision
- Examples of material information may include (but are not limited to):
 - o Mergers, acquisitions and divestitures
 - Significant new product developments
 - Revenues or earnings information

Your Role

If you have material nonpublic information about Griffon or other companies due to your role with Griffon, you are prohibited from trading in those companies' securities/stocks, as well as from communicating such information to family, friends or any other person.

Consult your Ethics Liaison Officer and the Company's Policy on Insider Trading for further guidance.

Gratuities and Business Courtesies



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that its personnel and representatives must conduct business with customers (including U.S. and foreign governments) and vendors on the basis of service, quality, performance and price without giving or accepting anything of value that could influence or appear to influence the outcome of a transaction. Further, it is against the law for employees or representatives of a U.S. corporation to give anything of value, directly or indirectly, to an official of another country in order to obtain or retain business or influence an official act or decision. In certain countries, businesses or entities may be owned by the local government, and people that you think of as working for a private entity may actually be government employees.

Why is this important?

To ensure the integrity of our business transactions and to comply with applicable laws, sales, purchases and other business decisions must not be influenced or appear to be influenced by gifts, gratuities or business courtesies. Further, the Company has a long-standing tradition of not doing anything that might cause others to potentially violate the law or the policies of their employer.

Gratuities are defined as items of value (cash, goods, services, use of property, etc.) that are given voluntarily and not in return for, or in anticipation of, a reciprocal service or courtesy.

Business Courtesies are reasonable accommodations (meals, refreshments, entertainment, transportation or lodging, etc.) that may be offered or received only in connection with marketing, product information, procurement, public relations or other business activities of the Company.

Your Role

Giving Gratuities and Business Courtesies — Applicable law prohibits you, as a Company employee, from offering or approving an offer for a gratuity or business courtesy that could be interpreted as an attempt to gain an unfair business advantage. Providing gratuities or business courtesies directly or otherwise to government officials needs to be handled in accordance with applicable law, such as the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Very specific and strict rules apply to business courtesies and gratuities offered to any government's employees, U.S. or otherwise. There are also specific rules that govern business courtesies and gratuities offered to employees of certain types of companies that are dependent on government funding, such as hospitals.

Receiving Gratuities and Business Courtesies — Company policy specifically prohibits you from soliciting any gratuity or business courtesy at any time or accepting a gratuity or business

courtesy if doing such could create an actual or perceived influence or unfair advantage in conducting business with Griffon.

Consult your Ethics Liaison Officer and local internal policies for further guidance.

Company Books, Records and Reports



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that books and records must be maintained in accordance with proper accounting practices and all applicable laws and regulations. All time and costs must be accurately and completely recorded in a manner that can be easily audited. No false, misleading or artificial entries may be made in the books and records of the Company. Griffon is firmly committed to complying with all applicable laws and regulations relating to the preservation of records. Record retention is to be administered on a non-discretionary basis in accordance with applicable internal policies.

Why is this important?

As a public company there can be no compromise in the proper maintenance of our books, records and reports. The information from these records becomes a building block for our public reports to shareholders and regulators as well as for prices charged to our customers. Incorrect time charging or other business entries violate the trust of our customers, shareholders, and vendors and may also violate the law.

Your Role

Accuracy of the Company's books and records begins with each of us. Whether the records are time cards, expense reports, general accounting records, or purchasing or manufacturing records, each of us has a personal responsibility to ensure that every document is complete and accurate. Under no circumstances are Company records to be destroyed selectively or maintained outside Company premises or designated storage facilities. However, Company records should be disposed of routinely at the end of the retention period set forth in the applicable internal record retention policy.

Responding to Investigations and Legal Action



Policy

Griffon takes seriously its responsibility to cooperate with government audits, investigations and inquiries. In this situation, Griffon strictly prohibits destroying or altering any documents or electronic records, lying to or misleading an investigator, or obstructing the collection of information.

Why is this important?

Griffon values the trust placed in our company. We face a significant risk of damaging that trust and our reputation when we are involved in an investigation or litigation. We must pay particular attention to conducting our business and ourselves according to the highest standards of business ethics. The Company can face substantial legal penalties for improperly destroying information or records or obstructing an audit or investigation.

Your Role

You are required to cooperate in internal investigations. You must never destroy or alter any documents or electronic records, lie to or mislead an auditor or investigator, or obstruct the collection of information relating to an audit or investigation. In general, you will be notified when documents are to be preserved (even if their destruction would otherwise be called for by the records retention policy that applies). However, even in the absence of such a notification, if you ever have any doubts about whether it is appropriate to destroy a document under the records retention policy, please contact your Ethics Liaison Officer before doing so.

You must notify your Ethics Liaison Officer or the Legal Department immediately if you learn that a government agency, attorney, or any third party is conducting an investigation or asking for information pertaining to a suspected violation of law.

Using Company Resources



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that Company resources are provided for the purpose of serving the business interests of the Company and may not be used for any illegal purpose, to support a personal business venture, for political purposes or any purpose that would cause embarrassment to Griffon. Personnel have no expectation of privacy in their use of Company property. Excessive personal use of Company property is prohibited as well. Downloading, storing or transmitting information that contains obscene or explicit language or images that are offensive is also prohibited.

Why is this important?

Our continued success depends on the appropriate and effective use of Company resources to benefit the organization as a whole. Theft, damage and improper use of Company resources (*i.e.*, for non-business purposes) could reduce profit to our shareholders, increase prices to our customers and, ultimately, result in decreased business and fewer jobs.

Griffon defines Company resources as facilities, equipment (including computers and phones), electronic and telecommunications media as well as any proprietary information that are used for conducting business.

Your Role

Treat all Company resources with respect and keep in mind that access to these resources is a privilege, not a right. Because there is no expectation of privacy and the Company owns all data created through the use of Company property, use common sense when using e-mail, telephones, faxes or other Company resources and ensure that such use is not inappropriate, excessive or interfering with your responsibilities as an employee of Griffon. Remember that all software is to be used in accordance with applicable license agreements. Use of unauthorized computer software violates Company policy and may be in violation of Federal copyright statutes.

Product Integrity



Policy

The Company is committed to providing products and services that are safe and that meet or exceed customer expectations of safety, reliability, quality and performance. Products and services must be accurately represented to our customers.

Why is this important?

Deficiencies in product quality, safety, design or installation may place the well-being of customers, employees or others at risk. Any such deficiencies in product integrity must be reported promptly.

Your Role

It is imperative that all employees design, manufacture and test our products in strict accordance with all contract and legal requirements. Products and services must be accurately represented to our customers.

Employee Health and Safety and the Environment



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that all personnel must comply with all applicable environmental and health and safety laws and regulations. Other than authorized security personnel, and subject to applicable law, no personnel may carry firearms, explosives, incendiary devices or any other weapons on Company premises, or while conducting Company business. This applies even to personnel who have a permit or license to carry a weapon. Similarly, Griffon strictly prohibits acts of physical intimidation, assaults, or threats of violence by any of its employees. In addition, Griffon will not use any form of illegal child labor or involuntary labor or do business with any supplier if Griffon is aware that the supplier uses illegal child labor or involuntary labor. Violations of this policy are not tolerated.

Why is this important?

The U.S. Government and many governments of countries where we do business, as well as state and certain local governments, have established strict standards for the storage, use, treatment and disposal of a wide variety of materials for the assurance of employee health and safety. Failure to conduct our operations properly can have serious and damaging consequences for our employees, neighborhoods, customers, shareholders and the environment.

We are committed to not only comply with but, through continuous improvement programs, strive to exceed applicable environmental and employee health and safety standards by:

- ◆ Ensuring a safe work environment for all employees
- ◆ Eliminating or minimizing the generation of hazardous and other wastes
- Conserving energy, water and raw materials

The Company is committed to maintaining a safe workplace. Personnel are expected to know and comply with appropriate facility safety rules. Deficiencies in workplace safety should be reported promptly to management.

The use, possession or distribution by any employee of any illegal drug, illegally used prescription, weapons, controlled substance or alcoholic beverage on Company premises – or anywhere else in a manner that may harm the safety of any employee, the quality or efficiency of Company work or the general reputation of the Company – violates the *Code*, and may violate applicable law.

Your Role

You should be aware of your surrounding environment and help operate our business in a compliant and responsible manner which will protect our employees, our communities and our environment. All personnel should be aware of the environmental, health and safety policies and procedures applicable to their business and strictly adhere to them. Personnel are prohibited from bringing a weapon onto Company premises or committing or threatening acts of physical violence. Personnel who are aware that anyone on the premises has a weapon or is threatening physical violence should contact the Human Resources Department immediately.

Confidentiality/Protecting Information



Policy

It is Griffon's policy to proactively safeguard all information that could be reasonably considered Company sensitive as a means of preserving Griffon's integrity and protecting our competitiveness, profitability and security in dealing with all outside parties. It is also Griffon's policy to not use another company's proprietary information without their permission. Sensitive information includes, but is not limited to, all non-public information that might be of use to the Company's competitors or harmful to the Company or its customers, suppliers or partners if disclosed. Disclosure of sensitive information is only permitted when disclosure is expressly authorized or is required by law.

Why is this important?

Unauthorized disclosure of Company sensitive information, or unauthorized possession or use of someone else's sensitive information, could disadvantage the Company competitively, could compromise customer trust in Griffon and may expose the Company and the employee to legal liability.

Employees must be familiar with established policies and procedures that govern the protection of information. This may include:

- Company sensitive information
- ◆ Third party proprietary data
- → Employee personal data
- ★ Government classified information
- Customer and supplier information (in particular, sales and pricing information)

If governing laws are violated, the Company and the person or persons involved in the violation could face substantial fines and/or imprisonment.

Your Role

You must take care in protecting the Company's proprietary information which includes both technical and non-technical information. This duty to maintain the confidentiality of the Company's proprietary information extends even beyond the term of your employment with the Company. Whenever you copy or distribute Company proprietary information, it must be for a legitimate Company business purpose.

Additionally, using another company's proprietary information without their permission can have serious implications for you and Griffon. Using unauthorized proprietary information of others, including that of competitors, customers, suppliers or individuals, could expose the organization to legal liability. You should never share proprietary information belonging to any

previous employer with any person at Griffon. Hiring an employee who works for a competing business present special concerns. Prior to extending an offer of employment, you should discuss the proposed offer with the Ethics Compliance Officer or the Legal Department.

When in doubt, seek guidance and remember – your obligation to protect Griffon's proprietary information extends not only to your period of employment, but also after your employment with Griffon ends.

Export, Import and Antiboycott Compliance



Policy

It is Griffon's policy to abide by applicable export and import rules and regulations whenever and wherever Griffon's business is being conducted. Sharing, selling, giving, receiving or otherwise transferring Company products, services or technical data to or from a foreign person or entity must be in compliance with export and import rules of the United States and the foreign territory. In addition, there are antiboycott laws and regulations that prohibit us from assisting in the boycott of another country.

Why is this important?

In today's global economy, providing or receiving hardware, software, services or technical data to and from a foreign company can be a highly complex process. Not only do you need to be aware of and comply with our country's import/export laws, you must also act in accordance with the laws and regulations of the applicable government that controls such technology transfers. Certain licenses or other government approvals may be required to export or import products, services or technical data. Noncompliance with the export and import laws and regulations can result in serious fines for Griffon and may even include a loss of export privileges or debarment as a Federal contractor. Moreover, Griffon may not cooperate with, and must report to the U.S. Government, requests that are prohibited by the U.S. antiboycott laws and regulations.

Your Role

Early coordination with Company experts is critical. Export and import regulations are often complex and based on the type of goods, technology or services being exported or imported and the intended destination. The identity of the customer and the intended end user (if different) are also critical.

Compliance with export controls is more than simply shipping product overseas. It may also include any visual disclosure or discussion involving technical data or technology with any foreign persons, abroad or in the U.S., including foreign national employees, consultants, temporary employees or contract laborers.

You should seek help and guidance before taking action that could expose you or the Company to violations of import, export or antiboycott regulations.

Antitrust and Competition



Policy

It is Griffon's policy and good business to obey the antitrust and competition laws of every country where we do business.

Why is this important?

The consequences of failing to follow antitrust and competition laws can be severe. Often this results in the violator being subject to criminal penalties, including imprisonment and/or significant fines as well as exposure to damages.

Certain types of conduct clearly violate U.S. antitrust laws and the competition laws of countries where business is being conducted. This type of conduct includes:

- Price fixing
- ♦ Bid rigging
- Market allocations of customers or territories
- ◆ Group boycotts

Other types of conduct may or may not violate U.S. antitrust laws or the competition laws of countries where the Company does business. Employees must check with the Ethics Liaison Officer before engaging in such conduct, especially the following:

- ◆ Tying arrangements requiring procurement of a Company product or service in order to be able to buy another Company product or service.
- + Exclusive dealing arrangements and requirements contracts.

Your Role

Personnel should have a general awareness of the types of business arrangements that have antitrust implications and contact the Ethics Liaison Officer before entering into such arrangements. Personnel should promptly report potential antitrust/competition violations to the Ethics Liaison Officer.

Doing Business with the Government



Policy

It is Griffon's policy and good business to obey the laws of every country where we do business. It is also the policy of Griffon to deal with government representatives in an honest and ethical manner and to comply with government procurement rules and procedures.

Why is this important?

Violations of applicable laws and regulations in performing under U.S. and foreign government contracts can lead to substantial fines and penalties and – in severe cases – suspension or debarment from receiving government contracts. These laws prohibit conduct that might unfairly favor one contractor over another during government procurement. Such conduct *may* include making employment offers or offering gratuities or business courtesies to government procurement officials, or acquiring confidential source selection information related to the government procurement. Many government contracts require us to provide information in connection with government audits and, in some instances, in connection with the negotiation of prices. When required by law, all Griffon personnel must ensure that the information we provide is current, accurate and complete.

U.S. Government contractors are required to timely disclose whenever, in connection with the award, performance, or closeout of a contract or any subcontract, the contractor has credible evidence that a principal, employee, agent or subcontractor of the contractor has committed a violation of Federal criminal law involving fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, or a gratuity violation or a violation of the civil False Claims Act. The disclosure requirement for an individual contract continues at least 3 years after final payment on the contract.

Your Role

All personnel must exercise discretion, use sound business judgment and comply with applicable laws and regulations in dealing with governments in all countries in which we operate. It is expected that Griffon personnel will deal with government representatives in an honest and ethical manner and avoid any circumstance that could be considered as deceitful or fraud, creating the appearance of an impropriety, or a conflict of interest. Report any suspected violation by employees or subcontractors regarding fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, prohibited gratuities or the False Claims Act to the Ethics Liaison Officer immediately. Keep in mind that, in some countries, employees that may appear to be working in the private sector might in fact be working for a business owned or controlled by the foreign country's government.

Recruiting Government Employees



Policy

It is Griffon's policy to conduct its recruiting and hiring practices of government employees in accordance with laws and regulations of the countries in which the Company operates and not create the appearance of an impropriety in this regard. Solicitation for employment, employment discussions and employment offers to current or former government officials (including military officers) must be made in accordance with the laws and regulations governing post-government employment.

Why is this important?

Current and former U.S. Government employees are subject to Federal laws and regulations that may limit the ability of the Company to recruit and hire certain individuals, and may limit the activities they may be able to perform for the Company. Depending on the circumstances, it may be against the law for you and that person to discuss potential employment with Griffon. Additionally, prior to engaging in employment discussions with government officials in other countries, guidance should be sought to ensure compliance with local country laws and regulations.

Your Role

Griffon personnel, or anyone acting on our behalf, are prohibited from engaging in employment discussions with certain current U.S. Government employees. This means that you must not even discuss the possibility of employment with a current U.S. Government employee until they have formally notified their superior of such employment discussions.

Whether dealing with a U.S. Government employee or government employee from another country, guidance should be obtained through the Ethics Liaison Officer to determine whether their employment could create a conflict of interest and/or a possible violation of law.

Procurement Integrity



Policy

It is Griffon's policy to compete fairly and ethically in all of its business dealings. As part of this process, personnel must strictly comply with the laws, rules and regulations that apply to U.S. Government procurements. Personnel are prohibited from attempting to improperly obtain a competitor's bid or proposal information or any government source selection information.

Why is this important?

We are expected to deal fairly and honestly with customers, competitors, public agencies and subcontractors by ensuring that no data concerning customers or competitors is obtained or solicited in violation of law or regulation, and the confidentiality of procurement information is properly maintained.

For U.S. Government procurements, there is a ban on either obtaining or disclosing certain contractor bid or proposal information or government source selection information. This includes competitive information submitted to a government agency as part of, or in connection with, a bid or proposal to enter into a government procurement contract. This may also include nonpublic information that has been prepared for use by the procuring agency in the evaluation of a contractor's bid or proposal. These procurement integrity restrictions apply to everyone involved in U.S. Government procurement, and it applies until the contract is awarded.

Your Role

Always exercise caution should a third party offer to provide you with bid, proposal or source selection information and pay special attention to receiving or disclosing marketing intelligence, which may include competitor's price, cost data or program evaluation criteria.

Finally, all personnel involved with any aspect of government procurement must keep in mind that other confidentiality and nondisclosure restrictions may apply.

Lobbying Expenditures



Policy

It is Griffon's policy to comply with all laws relating to political contributions and lobbying expenditures.

Why is this important?

The Company is limited by law regarding expenditures for lobbying activities, contributions to political parties or candidates and expenditures regarding ballot measures.

Contributions that are governed by our policy include more than just cash donations. They also include any costs incurred by the Company on behalf of any political party or candidate for political office, or any ballot measure, including, for example, postage, internal or purchased items such as graphics and printing, tickets to fund raisers and similar events, and the wages and benefits of employees for any time that they may spend during regular working hours in connection with such matters.

Your Role

Personnel are encouraged to participate in the political process as good citizens, but those activities must be engaged in during their own time and at their own expense and may in no way be expressed as representing Griffon.

Problem Reporting and Resolution



Policy

It is Griffon's policy that if you have knowledge of any activity that is or may be a violation of the *Code*, you should promptly report such activity to your supervisor, another member of management, Human Resources, the Ethics Liaison Officer, or anonymously through the Ethics Compliance Line at (888) 298-4032. Harassment of, or retaliation against, an employee for making a disclosure to the Ethics Liaison Officer or any member of management is prohibited by Company policy. Deliberately making a false report is also prohibited.

Why is this important?

Unethical behavior is wrong and can damage the Company. At Griffon, we believe upholding the *Code* is everyone's responsibility. To that end, we've worked hard to create a culture of shared accountability, where everyone feels free to bring any ethical concerns forward.

Unfortunately, rules are sometimes broken. The Company must know about these violations so prompt and appropriate action may be taken. To help ensure the *Code* is enforced, all personnel should understand and accept their responsibility to report any violations and know they can do so without fear of retaliation. If any employee feels that he or she has been retaliated against for helping to uphold the *Code*, it is the policy of the Company to take immediate action.

Reports to the Ethics Liaison Officer may be made anonymously using the Ethics Compliance Line in the United States.

Your Role

Employees are urged to seek answers or clarification if there are any doubtful or "gray" areas. We urge all employees to seek answers to questions concerning ethical behavior before it becomes a problem. Whether you speak to your supervisor, someone in Human Resources, the Ethics Liaison Officer, or call the Ethics Compliance Line, there are multiple avenues available to you to raise your concerns or questions.

Enforcement



Anyone who suspects in good faith that the *Code* or a Company policy has been violated has an obligation to report suspected violations to the Ethics Liaison Officer, to Griffon Corporation's Ethics Officer or through the Ethics Compliance Line. *It is a breach of the Code for any manager or employee of the Company to retaliate or attempt to retaliate against any employee submitting such a report*. The Company takes allegations of violation seriously and will investigate them. Violators will be disciplined.

To promote and maintain a corporate environment that encourages the disclosure of concerns or reports, Griffon has established a separate and independent "Ethics Compliance Line" procedure for the receipt, investigating and reporting of information and reports of violations, or suspected violations of the *Code*.

Ethics Officer

The Griffon Corporation Ethics Officer is responsible for the implementation of all matters relating to the *Code*, including establishing operating procedures, developing educational programs and materials for inclusion in the Company's ethics training program, dissemination of the *Code* (including via electronic means), overseeing the Company's Ethics Compliance Line, and investigating and reporting of information and reports of suspected or known violations of the *Code*. The Ethics Officer may seek legal advice and investigative assistance from in-house counsel or outside counsel, as appropriate.

1. Ethics Liaison Officers

Each of the operating companies of Griffon Corporation shall designate an Ethics Liaison Officer. The Ethics Liaison Officers shall assist the Ethics Officer in all of his or her duties. The Ethics Officer may delegate such duties and responsibilities to the Ethics Liaison Officers as the Ethics Officer may deem appropriate and necessary.

2. Reports

The Ethics Liaison Officers shall provide periodic written reports to the Ethics Officer describing the activities associated with these responsibilities, including implementation of the Company's Ethics Program.

The Ethics Liaison Officers' written reports will include information concerning (i) Ethics Compliance Line calls, (ii) areas of investigation, (iii) status and disposition of Ethics Compliance Line calls and investigations, including disciplinary actions taken, (iv) educational and training programs conducted on matters related to the *Code* during the reporting period and (v) educational and training programs planned for the next reporting period.

Enforcement

continued

3. Reporting:

Suspected instances of improper conduct may be reported to your supervisor, or to any of the following persons:

GRIFFON ETHICS OFFICER

Telephone: (212) 957-5000

CLOPAY ETHICS LIAISON OFFICER

Telephone: (513) 770-3935

TELEPHONICS ETHICS LIAISON OFFICER

Telephone: (631) 755-7759

AMES ETHICS LIAISON OFFICER

Telephone: (717) 730-2564

ETHICS COMPLIANCE LINE:

United States/Canada: (888) 298-4032

Brazil: 55-1132301052

Germany: 0800-182-0873

Australia: 1-300-361-497

China: 800-720-1158

For matters related to U.S. Government contracts, you may also report your concern to the DOD HOTLINE:

DOD HOTLINE

DOD Inspector General Attn: Defense HOTLINE

Address: 400 Army Navy Drive Washington, DC 22202-6884 Telephone: (800) 424-9098

Amendments and Waivers



The *Code* may be amended only by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Certain provisions of the *Code* require you to act, or refrain from acting, unless prior approval is received from the appropriate person. Employees requesting approval pursuant to the *Code* should request such approval from the Ethics Officer, the Ethics Liaison Officer or their designees. Any waiver of the *Code* for any executive officer or director of the Company may be made only by the Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee of the Board of Directors. Any waiver of the *Code* for any other employee of the Company may be made by the Ethics Officer or the Ethics Liaison Officer. To the extent required by applicable law, rule or stock exchange regulation, all material amendments and any waivers for executive officers or directors will be disclosed publicly.

In some situations it may not be clear whether a provision of the *Code of Business Conduct* and *Ethics* is intended to apply to particular conduct. In such situations, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have full power and authority to interpret the *Code* in a manner that they believe reflects the intent of the Board of Directors, and no determination that the *Code* was not intended to apply to such conduct shall be deemed to be a waiver of the *Code*'s prohibitions.

Where to Go for Help



If you want help resolving questions about the *Code* as it applies to any specific situation, you should use one of the resources listed in this document.

Resources

Leadership – Successive levels of leadership are available to discuss your ethical concerns or questions. They may refer you to a different supervisor, but in most circumstances this should be your first point of contact.

Human Resources – Contact your local Human Resources representative to assist with employee relations matters or as a general point of contact involving employee-related concerns.

Ethics Liaison Officer – Contact your Ethics Liaison Officer to answer questions, seek guidance, express concerns or report suspected violations of the *Code*.

Ethics Compliance Line – Griffon has an Ethics Compliance Line, (888) 298-4032, through which you may seek guidance or report suspected violations. Your report may be made anonymously. All information provided to the Ethics Compliance Line, including your identity, will be kept confidential to the extent reasonably possible in light of the Company's investigation and reporting obligations.

